
Petitions Committee 
 

Meeting Venue: 
Committee Room 1 - Senedd 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 
27 March 2012  

 

Meeting time: 
09:00 

 

For further information please contact:  

Abigail Phillips 
Committee Clerk 
029 2089 8421 
Petition@wales.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

1. Introduction, apologies and substitutions (09.00)  

2. Discussion of Evidence Received on P-04-335 The Establishment 
of a Welsh Cricket Team (09.00 - 09.10) (Page 1) 

3. New petitions (09.10 - 09.15)  

 
P-04-371 Reduced fares on public transport for all children up to the age of 
eighteen  (Page 2) 
 

P-04-382 Student fares on public transport  (Page 3) 
 

P-04-378 Extend the Gower Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty  (Pages 4 - 18) 
 

P-04-379 Armenian Genocide Remembrance Day  (Page 19) 
 

P-04-380 Bring back our bus! Petition against the removal of scheduled bus 
services from east Lampeter, Cwmann & Pencarreg  (Page 20) 
 

P-04-381 Restoration for North Wales Hospital  (Page 21) 
 

P-04-383 Against NVZ Designation for Llangorse Lake  (Pages 22 - 30) 
 

4. Updates to previous petitions (09.15 - 09.25)  

 

Public Document Pack



P-04-354 Public statement of support for Bradley Manning  (Pages 31 - 32) 

Housing, Regeneration & Heritage 

P-04-322 A call to revise Cadw’s hold upon churches in Wales  (Pages 33 - 36) 
P-04-356 A Call to Review the Issues Set Out in the 2007 Report on Football in 
Wales  (Pages 37 - 39) 

Education & Skills 

P-03-124 Cysgliad  (Pages 40 - 43) 

Health & Social Services 

P-04-348 Recycling Targets for Health Boards  (Pages 44 - 49) 
P-04-359 Problems With The NHS For The Deaf  (Pages 50 - 55) 
P-04-366 Closure of Aberystwyth Day Centre  (Pages 56 - 59) 

Equality 

P-04-353 Anti-hate crime campaign in Wales  (Pages 60 - 64) 
 

5. P-04-341 Waste and Incineration - Oral Evidence Session (09.25 
- 09.50) (Pages 65 - 69)  

Rob Hepworth, Chair, Stop Newport & Monmouthshire Incinerator Campaign (SNIC) 
Haydn Cullen Jones, Vice Chair, Stop Newport & Monmouthshire Incinerator 
Campaign (SNIC) 
Tim Maddison, Spokesperson, South Wales Without Incineration (SWWIN) 
  

6. P-04-341 Waste and Incineration - Oral Evidence Session (09.50 
- 10.15) (Pages 70 - 76)  
Tim Peppin, Director of Regeneration & Sustainable Development, WLGA 
Rob Quick, Senior Reporting Officer, Prosiect Gwyrdd 
Mike Williams, Director, Prosiect Gwyrdd  

7. P-04-341 Waste and Incineration - Oral Evidence Session (10.15 
- 10.40) (Pages 77 - 87)  
Matthew Farrow, Director of Policy, Environmental Services Association 
Julie Barratt, Director, Chartered Institute for Environmental Health 
  

8. P-04-341 Waste and Incineration - Oral Evidence Session (10.40 
- 11.00) (Pages 88 - 92)  
John Griffiths AM, Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development 
Jasper Roberts, Deputy Director Waste and Resource Efficiency Division 
Dr Andy Rees, Head of Waste Strategy Branch  



9. Papers to Note   

 
P-03-136 Parking in Heath and Birchgrove  (Page 93) 
 

P-03-292 Public Toilet Provision  (Pages 94 - 95) 
 

P-04-358 Re-instate Home Support for children with ASD and their families in 
the Caerphilly County Borough  (Page 96) 
 



P-04-335 The Establishment of a Welsh Cricket Team 

Petition wording 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 
to support the establishment of a Welsh international cricket team. 

Petition raised by: Matthew Richard Bumford 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 11 October 2011 

Number of signatures: 187 

Supporting information: 

Whereas Scotland and Ireland gained associate membership of the 

International Cricket Council (ICC) and went on to compete in World Cups, 

Wales has failed to do so. In fact, no Welsh player has played international 

cricket for over five years as a result of being affiliated to the England 

Cricket Board. Recently the England and Wales cricket team played several 

"home" games in the capital of Wales, although no Welsh players were 

present. It would be unacceptable in other sports, like rugby, for a team 

comprised entirely of non-Welsh people, playing under a non-Welsh flag, 

with the badge of another country on their chest, to ostensibly play a "home" 

game in the Welsh capital. This would simply not be acceptable for other 

sports and should not be so for cricket. The current arrangements do not 

foster the game of cricket in Wales and are to its detriment because there is 

a lack of opportunity for Welsh cricketers to play at the highest level. At 

present Wales is completely unrepresented in international cricket and this 

must change with the establishment of an Welsh international cricket team. 

 

 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



P-04-371 Reduced fares on public transport for all children 
up to the age of eighteen 
 
Petition wording: 

We the undersigned call on the National Assembly to urge the Welsh Government to 

require reduced fares for public transport passengers aged under eighteen years. 

Petition raised by: Simon Williams-Jones 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 13 March 2012 

Number of signatures: 26 

Agenda Item 3.1

Page 2



P-04-382 Student Fares on Public Transport 

Petition wording: 

We call on the Welsh Government to secure reduced fares on public transport 

for those in full-time education. 

Petition raised by: A-level students 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 27 March 2012 

Number of signatures: 93 

Agenda Item 3.2

Page 3



P-04-378 Extend of the Gower Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty 
 
Petition wording: 

We call on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to 

ensure that the Gower Society’s proposal for the Gower Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty to be extended is expedited, given that the request has been 

with the CCW for consideration since 2005 and the fact that, as of December 

2011, the CCW is no longer considering such proposals due to the potential 

establishment of a new Single Environment Body for Wales. 

 

Petition raised by: The Gower Society 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 13 March 2012 

Number of signatures: 1 (from an organisation) 

Supporting information: On 1 March 2005, The Gower Society (one of the 

oldest and largest local amenity groups in Wales) wrote to the Countryside 

Council for Wales requesting it to consider extending the Gower Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty to areas in the north east of the Gower 

peninsula, arts of the Loughor Estuary and Loughor Conservation Area, and 

much of the upland area of Mawr. 

The response of the Chief Executive of CCW (29.03.05) was that CCW was 

working with Denbighshire County Council “to work up a process that will 

inform any decisions on whether a tract of land should be put forward as a 

proposal for AONB designation. It is intended that the resultant process will 

be entirely transferable to any other areas in Wales.” He went on to say: “It is 

likely that this pilot will be completed by March 2006”. 

A series of correspondence has followed this initial exchange and several 

meetings have taken place at National Assembly offices between 

representatives of The Gower Society and CCW, arranged by – and usually in 

the presence of – Edwina Hart, Assembly Member for Gower. 

Two meetings were held with Ms Jane Davidson when she was Minister with 

responsibility for the environment, and on 18.07.11, representatives of The 

Gower Society met Mr John Griffiths, Minister for (inter alia)  the 

Environment. 

At each of these three meetings the proposed AONB extension was 

discussed. 

Agenda Item 3.3

Page 4



The City and County of Swansea’s policy is to support such an extension and 

Mawr Community Council (the area most largely affected by the proposal) 

has expressed its full support. 

After the Clwyddian Range and Dee Valley designation Order was confirmed 

by the Minister on 22.11.11, we wrote to CCW  again, urging them now to 

move forward with our 2005 proposal for the Gower AONB. The Chief 

Executive’s reply noted the Welsh Government’s approval of the case for 

establishing a Single Environment Body for Wales. “Given these momentous 

changes”, he continued “we will be focussing our efforts in the next 18 

months in working… to ensure a smooth transition from CCW to the SEB”. 

Therefore “We are not in a position to consider any further proposal for 

boundary changes or new designations”. 

By then, it will have been over eight years since our proposal was first put to 

CCW. In our view, this length of delay is unreasonable, and we call upon the 

National Assembly for Wales to expedite this process. 

Page 5



PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-378  Extend the Gower Area of Outstanding Natual Beauty - Paper 1

Page 6



PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-378  Extend the Gower Area of Outstanding Natual Beauty - Paper 2

Page 7



PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-378  Extend the Gower Area of Outstanding Natual Beauty - Paper 3

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



P-04-379 Armenian Genocide Remembrance Day 
 

Petition wording: 

We ask the National Assembly to designate the 24th April in Wales as 

Armenian Genocide Remembrance Day 

Petition raised by: Eilian Williams 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 27 March 2012 

Number of signatures: 262 

Agenda Item 3.4

Page 19



P-04-380 Bring Back our Bus! Petition against the Removal of Scheduled 
Bus Services from East Lampeter, Cwmann and Pencarreg 
 

Petition wording: 

We request the urgent implementation of a properly scheduled & timetabled bus 

service in these affected areas & would urge those governmental agencies 

concerned, to commit to this on our behalf, at the earliest possible opportunity. 

Supporting information: 

On February 27th 2012, Arriva began operating as a solely commercial enterprise, 

ending their subsidies from local County Council & Welsh Assembly and running 

their operations on an ‘express service’ as opposed to the previous ‘hail & ride’ 

one, which is essential in these very rural areas.. 

The company rerouted the former X40 service, bypassing east Lampeter, Cwmann & 

Pencarreg., thereby denying access to essential services like G.P. Dentist, Post 

Offices& shops, curtailing the ability of people, to exercise their freedom of 

movement, insofar as access to the above services is concerned.  

The removal of regularly scheduled bus services has also had an extremely 

detrimental effect on the ability of all sectors of our communities to go about their 

normal daily lives. The evident disregard for peoples’ safety cannot be emphasised 

enough because people are now trying to walk unpaved & unlit roads, populated by 

fast traffic & juggernauts. . 

Carmarthenshire & Ceredigion County Councils are trying to extend the 

implemented ‘Bycabus’ scheme, a predominantly pre-booked service, which has 

proven limited availability and which is currently operating in an economically 

unsustainable and environmentally inefficient way. 

As it is Welsh Assembly and local County Councils who agreed to implement these 

transport changes, they are responsible under their duty of care to 

the people in Wales, especially the elderly and otherwise vulnerable, who are 

currently having their independence taken away from them and who are in danger 

of becoming increasingly isolated. Lack of an adequate bus service will also affect 

the economic, social & welfare aspects of peoples’ lives. 

Petition raised by: Sharon McNamara 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 27 March 2012 

Number of signatures: 505 (479 on paper and 26 on website) 

Agenda Item 3.5

Page 20



P-04-381 Restoration for North Wales Hospital 
 
Petition wording: 

We call on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to 

assess the architectural heritage of the North Wales Hospital and to ensure 

that the bat roosts located there are protected. We would like this truly 

unique building to be preserved and restored for the nation. 

Supporting information: 

The North Wales Hospital is a fine example of a Victorian asylum designed by 

architect Thomas Full James, opening in 1848 and closed 

1995.Encompassing a 160 years of history, the threat is imminent, the 

former North Wales Hospital should impart its sad story with aim of 

preservation and retention of the site, to preserve the historical context for 

future generations in this 126 acre site.During the period after disposal, it 

has had a succession of owners some of whom involved in letting the 

buildings fall in dereliction, asset stripping and demolishing listed buildings 

contrary Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. Bat 

roosts have been disturbed contrary to The Wildlife and Countryside Act 

1981.  

The disposal and re-development of this Victorian hospital and associated 

buildings, once described by the Welsh historic environment agency Cadw as 

the finest purpose-built hospital in Wales, has been beset with problems for 

more than 15 years. The local authority could be placed at significant 

financial risk if they were to acquire the site while the condition of the 

buildings continue to deteriorate unless they have agreed a viable mix of 

new uses and have a developer partner to deliver the scheme. It is worth 

examining the history to date of the disposal process as it highlights a 

number of really useful lessons of wider applicability.’ 

 Petition raised by: Paul Sharrock, restoration4nwh 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 27 March 2012 

Number of signatures: 29 

Agenda Item 3.6

Page 21



P-04-383 Against NVZ Designation for Llangorse Lake 

Petition wording: 

'We call on the Welsh Assembly Government to overturn the proposed Nitrate 

Vulnerable Zone designation on the basin of Llangorse Lake, which is likely 

to affect approximately 25 farm businesses. 

Petition raised by: Kaye Davies 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 27 March 2012 

Number of signatures: 43 

Agenda Item 3.7

Page 22



PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-383 Against NVZ Designation for Llangorse Lake - Paper 1

Page 23



PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-383 Against NVZ Designation for Llangorse Lake - Paper 2

Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



P-04-354 Public statement of support for Bradley Manning 
 
Petition wording: 

We call on the National Assembly for Wales to issue a public statement of 
support for Welsh/US citizen Bradley Manning. 
 

Petition raised by: Rev Christopher Trefor Davies 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 10 January 2012 

Number of signatures: 90 

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 31



Page 32



P-04-322 A call to revise Cadw’s hold upon churches in Wales 

Petition wording 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to investigate the inflexible 
way in which Cadw enforces its regulations upon active, vibrant 
congregations using listed buildings across Wales, thereby keeping them in a 
state of architectural inertia, unable to take advantage of modern 
developments in building materials and making it difficult for churches to 
make changes necessary for them to serve the coming generation and the 
local community.  
 
Link to petition:  http://senedd.assemblywales.org/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=1015  
 
Petition raised by: Graham John 
 
Number of signatures: 147 
 
Update: Correspondence has been received from the Minister for Housing, 
Regeneration and Heritage. 

 

Agenda Item 4.2

Page 33



Ebenezer Baptist Church 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

William Powell AM 

Chair, Petitions Committee, 

National Assembly for Wales, 

Cardiff Bay 

Cardiff         Your ref: P-04-322 

CF99 1NA.        13th February 2012 

 

Dear Sir, 

I am replying to your request in October 2011 for suggestions as to what further help the 

Minister for Housing, Regeneration and Heritage could offer to address the issues I have 

raised.  I have been requesting advice in light of the Minister’s letter and apologise for the 

delay. 

I am encouraged that the Minister accepts in his letter that churches should not be 

“preserved without any changes so they are not relevant to modern day worship”. (para 

2).  Also significant is his statement that CADW and the Local Authority Conservation 

Principles have built into them the need “to be pragmatic in appreciating the needs of 

present day congregations in worship.” (para 7). 

I continue to have several concerns and these are listed towards the end of this letter.   

However to answer the committee’s request directly there are two ways the Minister could 

consider, if he really believes there is any substance to the complaint of this petition.   

1st In my initial petition and its supporting document I suggested a two tier system 

which would relax some of the regulations if CADW were dealing with a charity where 

the building was in constant use.  The Minister did not address the merits of this 

suggestion.  

2nd I notice the Minister is keen on the idea of a “Task Force” working group to look at 

the long term future of chapels in Wales, and is “in the process of meeting with several 

Page 34



2 

 

www.ebenezer.org.uk 

A member of Associating Evangelical Churches of Wales www.aecw.org.uk 

 

different church and chapel denominations in Wales”1  He is correct in stating that “the 

places of worship mentioned in the Petition are generally independent churches”.   May 

I therefore suggest that the remit of this Task Force is expanded to gather details from 

churches which are independent, such as those members registered with AECW 

(Associating Evangelical Churches of Wales) which represents about 100 active, 

growing churches in North and South Wales.  This would put him into contact with our 

church, and many others that would be eager to present their views.  I can provide 

further details if the Minister wishes to pursue this. 

 

Response to the letter from Minister Huw Lewis AM 

1.  It seems that the Minister is protecting CADW by explaining the part played by the 

Local planning authority in his letter paras 5, 6 and 7.  Nevertheless in my experience of 

over thirty years’ ministry, churches have relatively few problems with the local planning 

authorities but persistently when CADW gets involved.   

2.  May I illustrate frustrations with CADW using details from Ebenezer, my current 

church?  I believe they are typical.  We have been attempting to introduce changes and 

improvements which would allow the free movement of disabled people into and around 

the premises, to fulfil the requirements of the Disability Discrimination Act to make 

“reasonable adjustments” to the features of our premises.  I have been Ebenezer’s 

minister for six years and CADW was involved then.  So large are the delays that one of 

the necessary quotations became invalid as the building firm went out of business.  I was 

saddened when one elderly member recently said she honestly expected to be dead by 

the time any plans are enacted.  CADW have just requested for the third time a further 

breakdown on figures relating to permission for new windows.   

3.  These are the kind of delays that make many churches question whether what is 

claimed on paper actually occurs in practice.   

                                                 

1
 Reported in the South Wales Evening Post in an article by Mike Hedges Swansea East AM “Chapels have a special 

place in our History” Fri Feb 10
th

 2012. 

Page 35



3 

 

www.ebenezer.org.uk 

A member of Associating Evangelical Churches of Wales www.aecw.org.uk 

 

4.  Can the Minister cite actual instances where the needs of present day congregations 

have been taken into account to the satisfaction of the congregation, when considering 

modernizing features to assist their mission to the local community?   

5. Finally, the Minister quotes the grants we at Ebenezer have received from CADW.  Yet 

despite CADW’s “generosity” we are found setting forth a petition questioning CADW’s 

practice.  This conveys the measure of our discontent with CADW’s behaviour.  If there 

was an overall benefit from their involvement we would not be leading a petition of this 

nature.  Nor would it be supported by over 100 signatures from all parts of Wales. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Rev Graham John  

Lead Petitioner. 

Page 36



P-04-356 A Call to Review the Issues Set Out in the 2007 
Report on Football in Wales 
 
Petition wording: 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to review the issues set out in 
the 2007 Culture, Welsh Language and Sport Committee report ‘Football in 
Wales – a review’ 
 
In March 2011 the people of Wales overwhelmingly voted for more powers to 
be devolved to Wales. One of these areas was sport and recreation. We call 
upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to use 
these powers that they did not have in 2007 and review the original report. 
The FAW needs to be accountable to the people of Wales and provide value 
for money to the people of Wales. We want the Welsh Government to work 
with the FAW and FIFA to ensure that this happens. 
 

Petition raised by: Stuart Evans 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 10 January 2012 

Number of signatures: 96 

Agenda Item 4.3

Page 37



 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in both English and Welsh 

Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol / Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
Gwasanaeth y Pwyllgorau / Committee Service 

Ffôn / Tel : 029 2089 8429 
Ebost / Email : Communities.Equality&LocalGov@wales.gov.uk  

 

 

 

Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a 
Llywodraeth Leol 
 
Communities, Equality and Local Government 
Committee 
 

 
 

 
 

William Powell, AM 
Chair, Petitions Committee 
National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay  
CF99 1NA 

Bae Caerdydd / Cardiff Bay 
 Caerdydd / Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 
                                                             
                               

16 February 2012 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear William 

 
Petition: Anti-hate-crime campaign in Wales 
Petition: A call to review the issues set out in the 2007 report on football 
in Wales 
Petitions: Save Gwent Theatre; Spectacle Theatre; Save Theatr Powys & 
Mid Powys Youth Theatre 
P-04-317 Hijinx Funding for the Arts 

 
Thank you for your letter of 12 January, in which you notified me of your 
Committee’s consideration of a number of petitions.  
 
Petition: Anti-hate-crime campaign in Wales 
 
You will be aware that the Committee has recently conducted an inquiry on 
disability-related harassment. The Committee’s report was published at the end of 
2011 and we have given a commitment in that report to keep the issue under 
review during this Assembly. 
 
Petition: A call to review the issues set out in the 2007 report on football in 
Wales 
 

Page 38



 

 2 

The Committee has recently agreed to undertake an inquiry into football in Wales. 
It is intended that the inquiry will take place next term. While the purpose of the 
inquiry is not to directly follow up on the issues raised in the 2007 Assembly 
report, I am sure that the Committee will address any relevant issues raised with us 
by consultees.   
 
Petitions: Save Gwent Theatre; Spectacle Theatre; Save Theatr Powys & Mid 
Powys Youth Theatre 
P-04-317 Hijinx Funding for the Arts 
 
The Committee has agreed to establish a Task and Finish Group to consider the 
issue of participation in the arts. While the terms of reference for the Group’s 
inquiry does not directly relate to the petitions above, we hope that the 
organisations named above will be able to participate in our inquiry and raise any 
concerns they may have in relation to the effects of funding cuts on participation in 
the arts in Wales.  
 
 
I have asked the Clerk of the Communities, Equality and Local Government 
Committee to ensure that the lead petitioners are included in the relevant 
consultation process for the inquiries mentioned above.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ann Jones AC / AM 
Cadeirydd / Chair 

Page 39



P-03-124 Cysgliad  

Petition wording 

 
We the undersigned call upon the National Assembly for Wales to request 
that the Welsh Assembly Government makes available, for free download, the 
Windows version of the Cysgliad Welsh dictionary/thesaurus. 
 
Petition raised by: Alun Evans 
 
First considered by Committee: June 2008 
 
Number of signatures: 11 
 
 

Agenda Item 4.4

Page 40



PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-03-124 Cysgliad – Paper 1 

 

 

 

 

 

WRITTEN STATEMENT  

BY 

THE WELSH GOVERNMENT 
 
 

 
 

Title: Welsh Language Strategy 2012-17 

Date: 29 February 2012 

By: Leighton Andrews AM, Minister for Education and Skills 

 

The Programme for Government 2011-16 emphasised this Government’s support for 
the Welsh language and included a commitment to publish a new Welsh Language 
Strategy to meet the Government aim of “strengthening the use of Welsh in everyday 
life”. 
 
I am pleased to announce the publication of a new five-year Welsh Language 
Strategy: A living language: a language for living. It will replace Iaith Pawb: National 
Action Plan for a Bilingual Wales (2003) as the Welsh Ministers’ strategy for 
promoting and facilitating the use of Welsh. Adopting a Welsh language strategy is a 
requirement placed on Welsh Ministers by section 78 of the Government of Wales 
Act 2006. It will come into effect on 1 April 2012 and run until 31 March 2017. 
 
I am keen to maintain and develop a political consensus that exists around measures 
to develop and strengthen the language. The new strategy builds on the consultation 
draft published by the One Wales Government. The final version was developed with 
the assistance of a Ministerial Advisory Group comprising a wide range of key 
stakeholders. I am grateful for the group’s valuable input to the work of developing 
the strategy and for the comments and suggestions received during the consultation 
on the draft. 
 
The strategy builds on Iaith Pawb whilst also reflecting important legislative, policy 
and structural changes since 2003. These include changes as a result of the Welsh 
Language (Wales) Measure 2011 which will see the establishment of the Welsh 
Language Commissioner’s office in April 2012, the abolition of the Welsh Language 
Board and the consequential transfer of the majority of its activities to promote and 
facilitate the use of Welsh into the Welsh Government. The publication of the Welsh-
medium Education Strategy in 2010 provided an added imperative to update the 
Government’s strategy for promoting the use of Welsh more widely. 
 

Page 41



Six strategic aims have been identified for the strategy. The consultation on the draft, 
and discussions with my Advisory Group, showed there was wide-ranging support for 
action in these areas. The evidence review which was conducted to support the 
development of the final strategy also provided evidence that the six aims are both 
appropriate and necessary.  The six aims are: 
 

1. to encourage and support the use of the Welsh language within families. 
 

2. to increase the provision of Welsh medium activities for children and young 
people and to increase their awareness of the value of the language; 

 
3. to strengthen the position of the Welsh language in the community; 

 
4. to increase opportunities for people to use Welsh in the workplace;  

 
5. to improve Welsh language services to citizens; and 

 
6. to strengthen the infrastructure for the language, including digital 

technology.  
 
In addition, the strategy emphasises the importance of the Government’s Welsh-
medium Education Strategy as an essential component – alongside encouraging the 
use of the language in families – in producing the Welsh speakers of the future.  
 
The strategy is geared towards providing opportunities for people to use their Welsh 
language skills, whether acquired in the home or through the education system, in all 
aspects of everyday life.   
 
There is a particular emphasis on the need to develop greater opportunities for 
children and young people to participate in Welsh-medium activities outside the 
education system, and to do more to promote the value of using their Welsh 
language skills both economically and culturally. This links in with the greater 
emphasis on the workplace as an important domain in which the use of Welsh can be 
nurtured, where confidence in language skills can be built and where the value of the 
language can be demonstrated. This is closely related to the aim of improving Welsh 
language services to citizens.  
 
The strategy also demonstrates how the new legislative framework established by 
the Measure will have an important role to play.  Whilst the Welsh Language 
Commissioner will act independently of Government and set her own priorities, the 
Commissioner’s work in developing Welsh language standards, to impose duties on 
a wide range of organisations, will complement the activities that the Government will 
undertake in implementing this Strategy. Welsh language standards, in turn, will help 
share the responsibility for promoting the use of Welsh amongst a wider range of 
organisations.  
 

Page 42



A key aspect underpinning the strategy is the need to develop the infrastructure for 
the language, and in particular to take advantage of the opportunities that new 
technology can provide to promote its use. The need for new developments in 
technology and digital content to be available in Welsh is crucial if the language is to 
be seen as a modern and living language, particularly amongst young people. I have, 
therefore, established a group to explore how we can provide support for the 
development of more opportunities for people to use Welsh in this context.  
The Welsh language is an important and defining characteristic of Wales, and it 
belongs to all the people of Wales – Welsh speakers and non-Welsh speakers alike. 
In implementing this strategy, I want to invite new voices to help us with the 
challenging task of increasing the use of Welsh. I look forward to working with a wide 
range of organisations and individuals, including the statutory Welsh Language 
Partnership Council which I will be establishing shortly.   
 
Finally, I fully recognise that language planning is a long-term process. The purpose 
of this five-year strategy is to move confidently towards our long-term aim of seeing 
the Welsh language thriving in Wales. I look forward to discussing these matters with 
Members in the Plenary debate on Tuesday 13th March. 
 
The strategy can be downloaded from the Welsh Government’s website: 
 
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/welshlanguage/publications/wlstrategy2012/?lang=en 

Page 43



P-04-348 Recycling Targets for Health Boards 
 
Petition wording: 

We call on the National Assembly for Wales to recommend to the Minister for 
Health that she introduce legally binding recycling targets for Health Boards 
in Wales at a similar level to that imposed on Local Authorities. 
 
Supporting Information 
A recent Freedom of Information request indicated that the Maelor Hospital 
in Wrecsam disposed of 1200 tonnes of waste last year (which does not 
include electrical units WWEE). Only 3% of that waste is recycled and 55% 
goes into landfill including all food waste. This lack of committment to 
recycling is unacceptable and with several local facilities available it is also 
inexcusable. The total cost of removing waste from the Maelor annually is in 
the region of £350,000 and if this reflected across Wales then the cost is 
probably in the region of £5 million.  

 

Petition raised by: Cllr Arfon Jones 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 29 November 2011 

Number of signatures: 29 

 

Agenda Item 4.5

Page 44



08/02/2012 e-bost / e-mail 

 

Gohebiaeth gan y deisebydd mewn ymateb i lythyr Bwrdd Iechyd Hywel Dda  

 

Mae hwn yn gam i’r cyfeiriad cywir ond dim ond un Bwrdd allan o saith yw hwn, a dyna pam mae 

angen i’r Llywodraeth ddangos arweiniad i’r chwech arall drwy ddeddfwriaeth. 

 

 

 

 

Correspondence from the petitioner in response to Hywel Dda Health Board letter 

 

This is a step in the right direction but this is one out of seven Boards, this is why the Government 

needs to show leadership to the other six by legislating. 

PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-348  Recycling Targets for Health Boards - Paper 1

Page 45



PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-348 Recycling Targets for Health Boards - Paper 2

Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-348 Recycling Targets for Health Boards - Paper 3

Page 49



P-04-359 Problems with the NHS For The Deaf 

 
Petition wording: 

We the undersigned call on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the 
Welsh Government to provide a better service for the hearing impaired (H.I.) 
in the NHS. 
 

Petition raised by: Lisa Catherine Winnett 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 10 January 2012 

Number of signatures: 68 

Supporting Information: 

If a deaf person wished to contact their GP surgery to book an appointment, 

they are unable to do so, as Doctors surgery’s don’t have a mobile phone 

text service (Most H.I. don’t use text phone, they use mobile phone). When 

they receive a letter from the Health Board asking them to telephone to book 

and appointment with a specialist, they are unable to as there are no 

facilities for them. When attending a hospital appointment, there is no loop 

system service for them, so that they can hear and answer questions. They 

say that they can arrange a translator. We have tried accessing this service to 

no avail. When in hospitals and Doctors’ surgeries, H.I. people cannot hear 

when called, as there are no viewing boards for them to read that they can 

now go into the Doctors room. Staff 99.99% of the time never speak to the 

H.I. patient, they always speak to the translator. Lack of Deaf awareness is a 

problem. As sign language is an H.I. person’s 1st language, English is a 

foreign language, and a H.I. persons English is very layman’s. By 

implementing these changes, it would help with NHS targets, for example 

lower consultation times, correct diagnosis, saving repeated consultation 

time. It would help the H.I. with their independence, give them privacy when 

talking to a Doctor or Nurse. Banks and Post Offices have these services, so 

why doesn’t the NHS have them. 

Agenda Item 4.6

Page 50



PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-359  Problems with the NHS For The Deaf - Paper 1

Page 51



Page 52



PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-359  Problems with the NHS For The Deaf – Paper 2 

Consultation Response 

1. Have you or someone you know experienced problems such as those 
described in the petition? If so, perhaps you could provide us with an outline 
of what happened. 

Deaf / deaf and hearing impaired population are not one homogenous 
group. Deaf people have may have English as their first language, you cannot 
automatically assume because they are deaf or hearing impaired British sign 
language is their first or preferred language. Many deaf people become deaf 
later in life or are brought up orally from birth prefer to communicate via 
English. Little d deaf people (orally deaf) still experience the same difficulties 
in hearing appointments / hearing on the phone to book appointments etc 
as pre-lingually Deaf people and still need the NHS to provide 
communication support such as lip speaker, or a t-loop in waiting room, 
ward and consulting room as well as a British sign language interpreter 
option. You cannot mistake translators for interpreters there is a difference. 
British sign language interpreters are not translators or signers as they are 
sometimes called. 

Personally I have very nearly missed my hospital appointments at hospitals in 
Ystrad Mynach, Cardiff and Barry due to communication problems, i.e. I 
cannot hear my name being called even though I alert the reception on 
arrival that I am deaf. I keep reminding the staff there that I am deaf and 
can't hear my name; they forget to pass it on. My last hospital it was sheer 
luck my name was the one that had been called out I missed it and 
approached a doctor stating that did he know I was deaf and I also asked a 
nurse whether my name had been called out he pointed to a name on the 
file, he just called out and low and behold it was mine. I cannot relax in the 
waiting room being on constant alert for trying and struggling to hear my 
turn adds extra stress to an already stressful time. Also the consulting room 
/ receptions in these hospitals very have a loop system in place and 
sometimes the layout of the waiting room is awful, acoustics is poor, the 
lighting is dark which makes lip reading even at the best of times incredibly 
difficult. I’d prefer to have the option of having a British sign language 
interpreter with me at appointments but such information is rarely offered / 
mentioned by nhs staff.  

Another issue is the layout of the consultation room, I very often have to 
rearrange the seating so I am able to be close enough to the Dr to be able to 
try and lip read, and I do ask to look at the computer / my notes to try and 
gauge and second guess what the Dr is actually saying and what information 
he wants from me. Conversing with the doctor is a struggle if a mistake has 
been made I wouldn’t know immediately therefore my treatment / diagnosis 
could be wrong which could detriment my health as I’d only pick up on it if I 
receive a follow up letter which is rare. I am lucky as I am confident to ask 
for clarification before answering the Drs questions in the consultation. 

Page 53



Other patients may feel intimidated by their Dr and avoid asking for 
clarification instead they may only nod and gauge information / mood from 
body language without fully understanding the information conveyed. It is 
possible that some deaf people leave the consultation room none the wiser 
as to when they went in. Occasionally I am one of them despite my best 
efforts to understand the content on the consultation and after I had sought 
clarification.  

I would like to see viewing boards in all waiting rooms throughout the NHS, 
hospitals / GP surgeries as it would take away some of the anxiety of waiting 
to be called without having to be on the alert the whole time trying to 
remember which patients were here before and who arrived afterwards 
hoping you are called in order. While waiting to be verbally called as a deaf 
person I cannot relax for one moment.  

2. What are the barriers to providing facilities such as mobile text services, 
loop systems, viewing boards and translators in the NHS? 

British sign language interpreters are not translators so I am assuming by 
translators you mean interpreters in this question. 

The biggest barrier is cost. My dentist still provides text reminders, however 
my GP has stopped this service due to the expense. I found the text 
reminder very useful. It would be good if Hospitals, GPs and dental surgeries 
had such a system in place not only for reminders but for booking 
appointments too.  

After cost I’d say knowledge and lack of information are barriers because 
some NHS staff do not know what a t loop system is let alone how to switch 
one. Booking interpreters is often a mystery too even when you explain 
having an interpreter is necessary, reception staff sometimes start to panic 
as they don’t know how to go about booking an interpreter, who to contact, 
the need to book in advance and not the day before the appointment, if 
appointm,ent is cancelled at the last minute the nhs may still have to pay a 
cancellation fee, financial implications of cancellations is not always known 
about when Deaf people, who have an bsl interpreter, appointments are 
cancelled. 

3. In your view, would the provision of these facilities solve the problems 
outlined in the petition or should something else be done? 

Viewing boards of patient names would be good. You would have to make 
sure viewing boards are for names of patients only and not only for adverts 
to stop drinking and driving etc which are something I have viewed in an 
English GP surgery in the past.  

More could be done from managerial level to patient facing staff level to aid 
understanding of the barriers faced by D / deaf, hearing impaired patients. 
Provision of disability equality and deaf equality training which delivered by 
appropriate qualified disabled people and is regularly refreshed is essential 
for health professional to gain some understand of their Deaf/deaf/hearing 
impaired patients.  

Page 54



Knowledge of etiquette of working with a British sign language when 
consulting with a Deaf patient is essential. Drs may think that interpreters 
are an invasion of D/deaf patients’ privacy without them understanding that 
interpreters are qualified professionals who abide by confidentiality code of 
ethics. Drs very often talk to the interpreter and not to the deaf patient and 
may ask interpreters information about the deaf person thus assuming that 
the interpreters knows everything about the deaf person when in practice 
they could have only just met in the waiting room minutes before the 
appointment and are strangers. Again this links to some Drs views that 
interpreters must be deaf patients friends and do not fathom that 
interpreting is actually a professional job.  

 

Page 55



P-04-366 Closure of Aberystwyth Day Centre 
 
Petition wording: 

We the undersigned call on the Welsh Government to consider if proposals 

for day care for the vulnerable elderly, to be moved from a purpose built, 

thirty year old Day Centre, to an unsuitable basement in an old building, 

previously used as the Town Hall Aberystwyth, are compliant with statutory 

requirements, and any relevant guidance. The County Council are planning 

to demolish the Centre as part of a development to build a car park, a 

supermarket and a retail outlet. 

 

Petition raised by: Pamela Ellis 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 28 February 2012 

Number of signatures: 10 (An associated petition collected approximately 

6,000 signatures) 

Supporting information: The present Day Centre is a purpose built facility, 

about thirty years old. It is in a convenient situation in the town centre, with 

easy access, a large drop off point and is near a road safety crossing. It is 

light and sunny, and can accommodate about 90 clients of mixed 

dependency, in several spacious rooms. The envisaged centre is not quite 

half the size and will only be able to cater for 32 clients in one main room. 

At present those carers of disabled clients or those caring for victims of a 

stroke, can have access to respite care on 2 or 3 days of the week. We feel 

the move will discriminate against this group as already fewer people are 

being assesses and referred by Social Services for this respite care. The 

council have admitted there will be rationing. Because of difficulties of 

access to the basement area, an outdoor, steep ramp with a 180 angle 

turning point half way down has been built. We feel strongly that carers or 

mobile chair users will have huge problems, particularly in stormy or icy 

weather. The ceilings in the basement are low; there is a large pillar in the 

centre of the room making it difficult to move wheelchairs or trolleys, natural 

light levels are low as it is partially below ground and several doors have to 

be navigated to access toilets. The old centre has a superb new kitchen 

providing good meals, the weekly luncheon club, a valuable socially inclusive 

option, has been closed already. In future, meals will be prepared elsewhere 

and brought in. There will only be one area available for meals and all other 

activities; thus space will be extremely limited. The local WVS presently 

provides drinks and snacks; that will no longer exist. The present centre has 

a large bathroom with a hoist, also laundry facilities, which were invaluable. 

The new centre will have a shower built into a toilet for assisted bathing, 

which opens directly onto a communal area. As this is the only disabled 

Agenda Item 4.7

Page 56



toilet, it will be difficult for a disabled client to access a toilet if another 

client is having a shower. If the only new facility will only be able to cater for 

32 clients, these will almost certainly have to be those needing respite cares, 

so those older citizens who value the opportunity to enjoy time at the centre 

to socialise, take part in activities, have a bath and enjoy a good meal will 

not be able to do so. The present centre has a very pleasant garden with 

seats, ample parking, a bay for dropping off people and is completely 

accessible to all. The present centre is made available in the evenings to 

groups of elderly, for example the Arthritis Care group fear that they will not 

be able to cope with the ram, in the dark, for their evening meetings. The 

new centre is on a dangerous main road turning, with heavy traffic use. 

Former users of the basement when it was the Town Hall have complained 

that it is too hot in the summer and cold and damp in the winter. The 

heating system has been improved, but the present sash window are not 

being replaced and there will be no air-conditioning installed. Whilst the 

County Council have made efforts to meet our concerns, we strongly believe 

that the proposed new centre is absolutely unsuitable and is vastly inferior in 

the present centre. We would add that the Council have admitted that they 

did not carry out a proper consultation. Hence the formation of this pressure 

group. 

Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



P-04-353 Anti-hate crime campaign in Wales 
 
Petition wording: 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to condemn the rise in 
learning disability hate-crime and to urge the Welsh Government to create 
policies which challenge the negative perception of the value of people with 
a learning disability in Wales today. 
 

Petition raised by: Wayne Crocker 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 10 January 2012 

Number of signatures: 653 

Agenda Item 4.8

Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in both English and Welsh 

Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol / Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
Gwasanaeth y Pwyllgorau / Committee Service 

Ffôn / Tel : 029 2089 8429 
Ebost / Email : Communities.Equality&LocalGov@wales.gov.uk  

 

 

 

Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a 
Llywodraeth Leol 
 
Communities, Equality and Local Government 
Committee 
 

 
 

 
 

William Powell, AM 
Chair, Petitions Committee 
National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay  
CF99 1NA 

Bae Caerdydd / Cardiff Bay 
 Caerdydd / Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 
                                                             
                               

16 February 2012 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear William 

 
Petition: Anti-hate-crime campaign in Wales 
Petition: A call to review the issues set out in the 2007 report on football 
in Wales 
Petitions: Save Gwent Theatre; Spectacle Theatre; Save Theatr Powys & 
Mid Powys Youth Theatre 
P-04-317 Hijinx Funding for the Arts 

 
Thank you for your letter of 12 January, in which you notified me of your 
Committee’s consideration of a number of petitions.  
 
Petition: Anti-hate-crime campaign in Wales 
 
You will be aware that the Committee has recently conducted an inquiry on 
disability-related harassment. The Committee’s report was published at the end of 
2011 and we have given a commitment in that report to keep the issue under 
review during this Assembly. 
 
Petition: A call to review the issues set out in the 2007 report on football in 
Wales 
 

Page 63



 

 2 

The Committee has recently agreed to undertake an inquiry into football in Wales. 
It is intended that the inquiry will take place next term. While the purpose of the 
inquiry is not to directly follow up on the issues raised in the 2007 Assembly 
report, I am sure that the Committee will address any relevant issues raised with us 
by consultees.   
 
Petitions: Save Gwent Theatre; Spectacle Theatre; Save Theatr Powys & Mid 
Powys Youth Theatre 
P-04-317 Hijinx Funding for the Arts 
 
The Committee has agreed to establish a Task and Finish Group to consider the 
issue of participation in the arts. While the terms of reference for the Group’s 
inquiry does not directly relate to the petitions above, we hope that the 
organisations named above will be able to participate in our inquiry and raise any 
concerns they may have in relation to the effects of funding cuts on participation in 
the arts in Wales.  
 
 
I have asked the Clerk of the Communities, Equality and Local Government 
Committee to ensure that the lead petitioners are included in the relevant 
consultation process for the inquiries mentioned above.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ann Jones AC / AM 
Cadeirydd / Chair 

Page 64



P-04-341 Waste and Incineration 

Petition wording 

 

We call upon the National Assembly to urge the Welsh Government to review 

1. Prosiect Gwyrdd, which is against WAG policy of localised facilities, 

and allow our councils to choose their own waste technology and 

waste management procurement; 

2. The flawed Wales waste survey that only gave people a 2 choice option 

on waste disposal; 

3. By 2020, make it illegal to burn recyclable waste which would promote 

councils to recycle.  

Petition raised by: Terry Evans 

Petition first considered by Committee: 15 November 2011 

Number of signatures: 21 (an associated petition collected another 13,286 

signatures) 

Please follow the link to access full consultation response: 
http://www.senedd.assemblywales.org/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=2294  

 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 65



 

Welsh Assembly Petitions Committee - P-04-341 Waste and Incineration  

 

To : Abigail Phillips, Clerk to the Petitions Committee  

 

SUPPLEMENTARY SUBMISSION ON BEHALF OF THE STOP NEWPORT INCINERATOR CAMPAIGN 

(SNIC), MARCH 2012  
 

Submitted by Robert Hepworth, Chair SNIC, Leuktra Lodge, Bishton, Newport,Gwent NP18 2DZ 

rghepworth@gmail.com 

 

Carbon Footprint & Health : Debunking the Myths 
 

Carbon  Footprint 

 

It is repeatedly claimed that because incinerators  burn waste instead of oil, gas or coal, and  

produce energy, they are somehow part of the solution to climate change. This myth is coupled 

with a statement most people would accept – that landfill (or at least landfilling organic waste) 

has to be reduced or eliminated because methane contributes more to global warming than 

other emissions of greenhouse gas, including CO2. 

 

However incinerators will exacerbate and not reduce carbon emissions. Incinerators burn a 

mixture of fossil-fuel derived materials (e.g. plastics) and biological materials. A waste to 

electricity incinerator actually releases more fossil-fuel derived CO
2 

per unit energy produced 

than a gas-fired power station. They do not produce energy efficiently and neither of the 

incinerators proposed for SE Wales has a credible market for heat.  Using data from DECC, SNIC  

estimate that In 2018 waste  incinerators will produce about  850 gCO2  per kWh of fossil carbon 

compared with 350 gCO2 /kWh fossil carbon from the UK 'Average Mix' in a power station. 

These figures are likely to be closer to the actual outputs to be used for reporting Wales "Waste 

Sector" emissions under the European 20:20:20 Climate Action Plan.  There is no room within 

the agreed Wales Waste Sector limit (with 3% p.a. cut to 2020) for high-CO2 emissions from 

incinerators. 

 

Incinerators have been compared against other waste disposal options using the latest 

modelling technology. The most recent study
1
 published by economists at DEFRA in June 2011 

reached the conclusion that “ MBT (mechanical biological treatment)-landfill provides the best 

[greenhouse gas] emissions performance in terms of the treatment/disposal of residual 

waste. It essentially involves land filling somewhat stabilised wastes with some material 

recovery. The magnitude of the environmental impact depends on the extent to which the 

waste is stabilised.”  

 

                                                           
1
  The Economics of Waste and Waste Policy, Waste Economics Team, DEFRA June 2011 

PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-341 Waste and Incineration - Item 1

Page 66



This conclusion is confirmed by the league table in Greenhouse Gas Balances of Waste 

Management Scenarios
2
, in which incinerator options occupy 4 of the bottom 5 places above 

landfill while all the top 10 places are taken by MBT and gasification disposal methods. Defra 

and GLA’s use of this comprehensive report  illustrate that it is widely accepted as the definitive 

assessment of the relative performance of different  types of waste disposal process in relation 

to greenhouse gas emissions, and hence contribution to climate change. Note Eunomia’s 

conclusions that “Scenarios incorporating MBT (AD with maturation) perform most 

consistently well both under our central  assumptions and in each form of sensitivity 

analysis…….Under our central assumptions and the five forms of sensitivity analysis… 

incineration with CHP reaches a high of only 15th place in the scenario rankings.” 

 

As petitioners we also submit that the comparisons above – unfavorable though they are to 

incineration – may even underestimate the contribution of incinerators to greenhouse gas in 

the context of Prosiect Gwyrdd. This is because waste is due to be transported over substantial 

distances to a 5 county incinerator in Cardiff or Newport. Both the current proposals for 

incinerators in Cardiff and Newport would involve all the waste generated nearby being 

transported by road either in refuse collection vehicles or bulk lorries. In addition, between 20 

and 30% of the original tonnage of this waste will be re-exported, again by lorry, as partially 

toxic ash for use in the construction industry and/or for landfill. A smaller percentage of highly 

toxic flue or fly ash will also be exported by lorry over long distances to special sites in England 

licensed to store dangerous waste. Yet more lorries will ship out metals recovered from the ash 

which have not been incinerated into the atmosphere. 

 

A mass-burn incinerator serving 5 counties will generate considerably more transport by road 

of waste and waste products than the current system, or than alternatives such as MBT, largely 

because of the larger catchment area required to service a mass-burn incinerator, the constant 

financial incentive to maintain input waste tonnages and the high proportion of waste which 

has to be transported a second time as ash.  This inevitably means a higher proportion of 

greenhouse gas will be emitted by lorries, in addition to the amounts gushing into the 

atmosphere from the incinerator chimneys. 

 

PG has not given sufficient weight to greenhouse gas emissions, resulting in proposals which 

make no serious attempt to avoid high emission levels. A striking example is the failure to 

deploy rail transport in the Cardiff or Newport proposals. In the case of Veolia, this is in spite of 

the fact that the Llanwern steel processing mills have a freight siding with an immediate link to 

the main rail network. How can this Project describe itself as  “Green” or “Gwyrdd” in either of 

our languages, when it has allowed bids which are so prone to high greenhouse gas emissions 

and which fail to make use of even of existing rail infrastructure ? 

 

                                                           
2
   Eunomia Consulting, Jan 2008   

Page 67



In conclusion we would ask the Petitions Committee to reject assertions based on fictitious 

“offsets” which wrongly claim that MBT is the "worst option from a climate change point of 

view" and that incineration is the best. The opposite is the truth.
3
  

 

Health 

 

The health arguments alone justify a precautionary approach which avoids the risks inherent in 

mass-burn incineration which have damaged health for the last 150 years since the technology 

was invented by the Victorians.  

 

We will not repeat the extensive arguments which SNIC gave in our original evidence last 

December or our supplementary note sent to the Committee earlier this month on health. 

However we do draw the Committee’s attention to the devastating “Sniffer” report on particles 

discussed on pages 11-12 of SNIC’s original evidence. We are still hearing little but silence from 

officials on this report despite its clear warning that millions of lives are being shortened by 

exposure to the very particles produced in concentration and profusion by mass-burn 

incinerators.  The EU Directive covering particles requires reductions in their emissions not the 

construction of new incinerators which will produce more particles.  Fines will be inevitable if 

the Directive is ignored. The only argument we hear amounts to saying “because there are a 

different sources of particles we shouldn’t worry about incinerators”, ignoring the evidence 

that incinerators can account for a high proportion of particles in their vicinity, and the fact the 

incineration – unlike some other processes producing particles – is a totally unnecessary 

technology when safer, viable  alternatives exist. The Environment Agency for Wales conceded 

in their oral evidence to the Prosiect Gwyrdd Joint Scrutiny Panel in March 2012 that 6.3% of 

PMs come from incinerators. 

 

SNIC also draw attention to a new Italian article by Silvia Candela
4
 published in November 2011, 

not yet available in English as far as we know. A copy of the original is attached. The study is 

part of a series studying the impacts on the local population of 6 modern waste incinerators in 

Italy, which is of course subject to the same EU legislation on air quality and incinerators as 

Wales. This particular study shows significant relationships between exposure to incinerator 

emissions and stomach, pancreatic, and other forms of cancer. It is not the first study to show 

a correlation between incinerators and cancers based on epidemiological area studies. There is 

a steady flow of such findings : indeed the HPA’s own volte face on area studies in January 

                                                           
3
 We would also refer to the extensive discussion of the advantages of MBT, including the new plant at 

Avonmouth, given in our original evidence of December 2011 
4
 Studio di coorte sulla popolazione residente. Mortalità e incidenza dei tumori nei soggetti residenti intorno agli 

inceneritori per rifiuti solidi urbani in Emilia-Romagna Silvia Candela (Azienda Usl di Reggio Emilia, Dipartimento 

di Sanità Pubblica, responsabile Linea progettuale 4)  

 

Page 68



2012, when they commissioned a study of birth events around UK incinerators, suggests that 

doubts about the safety of incinerators are growing even within bodies which have previously 

been reluctant to accept that there are real risks to the public. 

SNIC stand by their evidence, and still believe that Wales has a unique opportunity to build on 

its progressive policies in other areas of waste generation (eg the restrictions on plastic bags 

and high kerbside recycling) and move forward with the safest greenest waste disposal policy in 

Britain and perhaps Europe based on recycling, mechanical and biological processing with 

energy-from–gasification.  Such a policy would create desperately needed new jobs. It would be 

light on capital investment, and flexible enough to modify economically as and when 

technology improves further.   

 

These and other issues, concerning cost as well as health and the environment, need to be fully 

aired in the Senedd as it still appears to be the Administration’s resolve to construct mass-burn 

incinerators throughout Wales to burn residual black bag waste for the next 25-30 years. Like 

the other petitioners, SNIC hopes that the Committee can be a catalyst in adopting a much 

greener, safer and less costly approach. 

Page 69



 
The WLGA welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English - Mae WLGA yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg 

Printed on recycled paper - Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur eildro 

Our Ref/Ein Cyf: 
Your Ref/Eich Cyf:  
Date/Dyddiad:    3rd January 2012  
Please ask for/Gofynnwch am:  Tim Peppin  
Direct line/Llinell uniongyrchol:  
Email/Ebost:      

 

Abigail Phillips 
Clerk to the Petitions Committee 
National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff 
CF99 1NA 
 
 
 
Dear Abigail 
 
Petition regarding Prosiect Gwyrdd  
 
Thank you for your letter of 16th November 2011 requesting views on 
the petition received in relation to Prosiect Gwyrdd. 
 
The petition makes three points. Comments on each of these are 
provided below. The questions suggested in your letter are addressed 
within these comments. 
 
Localised facilities and council choice over waste technology 
and procurement 
 
The EU Waste Framework Directive establishes the principle of 
‘proximity’, requiring member states to establish an integrated and 
adequate network of installations for the disposal or recovery of 
mixed municipal waste collected from private households. It requires 
that waste is disposed of, or recovered, in one of the nearest 
appropriate installations, by means of the most appropriate methods 
and technologies, to ensure a high level of protection for the 
environment and public health. In introducing the concept of ‘localised 
facilities’, however, the petitioners need to clarify their definition of 
‘local’. There are numerous factors that need to be considered in 
relation to what is ‘adequate and appropriate’, including the waste 
quantities involved and the technological choices available, budgets 
and costs, and geography and resilience:- 
 
Quantities and technology: The quantity of municipal waste in 
Wales was 1.62m tonnes in 2010/11, with under 400,000t in any one 
quarter. This total has been falling slowly each year with an ongoing 
downward trend expected. Prosiect Gwyrdd accounts for around 40% 
of this waste. With up to half of this municipal waste currently being 
recycled or composted, some of the waste treatment technologies 
available would be capable of dealing with all of Wales’ residual 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Steve Thomas CBE 
Chief Executive 
Prif Weithredwr 
 
Welsh Local Government 
Association 
Local Government House 
Drake Walk 
CARDIFF CF10 4LG 
Tel: 029 2046 8600 
Fax: 029 2046 8601 
 
Cymdeithas Llywodraeth 
Leol Cymru 
Tŷ Llywodraeth Leol 
Rhodfa Drake 
CAERDYDD CF10 4LG 
Ffôn: 029 2046 8600 
Ffacs: 029 2046 8601 
 
www.wlga.gov.uk 

 

PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-341 Waste and Incineration - Item 2 Agenda Item 6

Page 70



 
The WLGA welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English - Mae WLGA yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg 

Printed on recycled paper - Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur eildro 

 

municipal waste in one or two facilities. Indeed, the recently withdrawn Covanta project in 
Merthyr Tydfil would have had a capacity of 750,000t per annum. Likewise, facilities 
operating and being developed in England are on a scale that could deal with a large 
proportion of Wales’ waste. 
 
Budgets and costs: From a sustainable development perspective the prospect of a range 
of community level facilities generating energy that is then used in the same community 
certainly has attractions. Furthermore, it is important to see costs and benefits of different 
options ‘in the round’: there would be many potential benefits of a community-level 
approach over and above waste considerations (e.g. reduced transport, improved energy 
resilience, local employment opportunities). However, local authorities have to deal with 
today’s pressures and the budgets available as well as looking to the future. Moreover, 
sustainable development considerations must apply across all services and a 
disproportionately expensive solution for waste would take scarce resources away from 
other priority areas of local authority activity. Adopting technologies without a ‘track record’ 
would also carry a level of risk that would be unacceptable for authorities who – 
notwithstanding their successes with recycling and composting - are dealing with a regular 
and unrelenting stream of residual waste. For the moment, then, to achieve an acceptable 
level of costs there are likely to be economies of scale and/or certainty associated with 
using ‘tried and tested’ technologies currently available in the market place. As a 
consequence, local authorities have come together in a number of consortia across Wales 
to identify ways of dealing with their food and residual waste. Prosiect Gwyrdd is one of six 
such residual waste consortia.   
 
Geography and resilience: Whilst there may be technologies capable of dealing with 
large tonnages it is important to consider the transport logistics of moving such volumes to 
a small number of facilities – and the level of resilience in the face of potential transport 
and weather disruption. Subject to guidance in the Welsh Government’s municipal waste 
strategy (which has set out the Welsh Government’ preferred approach in terms of waste 
treatment), local authorities have been relatively free to identify the spatial scale that works 
best for them. Sensibly, local authorities have agreed on a collaborative approach. The 
Welsh Government has established the Wales Waste Procurement Programme Office 
(WPPO) to help authorities work through the procurement process. Each consortium has 
been given advice to assist it through the Government’s preferred process of competitive 
dialogue. The WPPO reports to a monthly Programmes Steering Group chaired by the 
Welsh Government and attended by WLGA. The procurement support has generally been 
welcome by the local authorities. The six consortia that have emerged to date are likely to 
continue to evolve as commitments to construct facilities are made, offering new 
opportunities, subject to capacity and cost considerations. Two consortia are currently in 
discussions with Welsh Government about the possibility of a different procurement 
approach that could see them working together. Whilst these discussions have yet to be 
concluded, the Government has demonstrated a willingness to engage with local authorities 
to identify geographical/scale configurations and procurement arrangements that are 
acceptable to all. 
  
Overall, then, it is misleading to say that Prosiect Gwyrdd is ‘against WG’s policy of 
localised facilities’ - ‘localised’ must be seen in context. There are grounds for arguing that 
the Welsh Government has limited the choice of local authorities in terms of waste 
technology and procurement. First, the Municipal Waste Strategy set out its preferred 
approach to waste treatment, supported by a ‘blueprint’ that recommends use of energy 
from waste with high energy efficiency for treatment of residual waste. Second, the 

Page 71



 
The WLGA welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English - Mae WLGA yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg 

Printed on recycled paper - Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur eildro 

 

Government has made it clear that long term financial support for alternative approaches is 
unlikely to be agreed. Third, the Government has required a process of competitive 
dialogue to be followed in procurement. However, there is a fine line between ‘giving 
leadership’ and ‘limiting choice’. Allowing 22 local authorities to pursue their own 
approaches could have resulted in an unstructured approach, being inefficient in terms of 
resource use (e.g. up to 22 sets of legal and financial advisors), taking much longer and, 
ultimately, potentially arriving at a very similar solution in light of market feedback. Whilst 
not always agreeing with all aspects of the Welsh Government’s approach, WLGA is content 
that the approach being followed is a constructive and pragmatic way forward, provided 
there is a continued willingness to engage and reach consensus on issues that arise as the 
process unfolds. 
 
Waste survey 
 
The survey referred to is understood to be the Public Attitudes to Waste in Wales survey of 
1,030 adults undertaken by GfK NOP on behalf of Waste Awareness Wales (WAW) in 
2010/11. The petitioners argue that the survey was flawed and gave only a two-choice 
option on waste disposal.  
 
To be clear and open, WAW is funded by Welsh Government and is hosted by WLGA.  The 
survey was a wide-ranging one and looked in particular at recycling behaviour. It was not, 
therefore focused solely on waste disposal options. When asked, two thirds of respondents 
felt that burning waste for energy is better than land filling. This is a significant finding. Of 
those who did not favour ‘energy from waste’, their main concern was about pollution.  
Importantly, though, the research found that there is a poor understanding of the issue of 
‘recovery’ from waste. 
 
The suggestion contained within the petition’ is that there are alternatives to landfilling or 
burning. It is misleading to suggest, however, that there are alternatives to landfilling that 
do not involve burning. On the WAW website there is information about waste recovery and 
the various broad categories of technologies that exist for non-recyclable waste – see:-
http://www.wasteawarenesswales.org.uk/recovery/index.html. This shows that: 
 

· Advanced Thermal Treatment – turns waste into a fuel. This fuel then has to be 
burned to create heat and electricity 

· Pyrolysis – treats waste at  300-800 degrees Celsius to produce a gas which is then 
burned 

· Gasification – operates at higher temperatures than pyrolysis but again produces 
syngas which is burned. 

· Mechanical and Biological Treatment - this reduces organic waste into a 
material known as flock, while removing recyclable materials.  The remaining 
material is used as a fuel which is burned in a thermal heating process. In any case, 
given the investment in separate recyclate and food waste collections throughout 
Wales, there should be little organic or recyclable material in the waste going for 
treatment 

· Energy from Waste – this burns waste at over 850 degrees Celsius.  Energy is 
recovered through the incineration process by using the heat to create steam.  This 
can be used for heating and power.  The bottom ash from the incinerator is then 
filtered to remove any remaining metals while the rest can be used as an aggregate.  
Filters capture any residues or particles from the incineration process, known as fly-

Page 72



 
The WLGA welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English - Mae WLGA yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg 

Printed on recycled paper - Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur eildro 

 

ash, and this is sent to landfill.  Waste is therefore recovered as a valuable source of 
heat and power. 

 
In the Welsh Government’s  Municipal Waste Strategy it states: “In respect of projects 
receiving Welsh Assembly Government funding support, the ‘reference solution’ for dealing 
with municipal waste is to meet the recycling/composting targets set in Towards Zero 
Waste, treat the separated food waste via Anaerobic Digestion and recover energy from 
the residual waste at an energy from waste (EfW) plant with the capability to 
secure, and as far as possible actually realise, 60 per cent thermal efficiency” (page 75; 
emphasis added). 
 
In terms of advantages and disadvantages of incineration/EfW: 
 
Advantages/arguments in favour 
 

· It provides a solution to the problem for local authorities of what to do with waste 
that cannot be recycled or composted  

· Less space is required than via landfill and the volume and weight of waste are 
greatly reduced 

· It avoids environmental damage associated with landfill such as from leachate and 
emissions of methane 

· There is financial support on offer from Welsh Government 
· Even non-recyclable waste still has a value – it is a resource that we can use 

beneficially to recover energy (as opposed to burying it in the ground)   
· It therefore makes a contribution to energy security and may be attractive to energy-

using industries (with potential knock on employment benefits) 
· EfW plants are very tightly regulated by Environmental Permits issued by the 

Environment Agency. Emission controls have to meet EU Waste Incineration 
Directive limits that are currently far tighter than controls over other comparable 
industrial and power plants that do not use waste as a fuel.  

· Health Impact Assessments (HIA) carried out for both the Regional Waste Plans and 
Towards Zero Waste concluded that modern well regulated waste treatment plants 
do not have a significant impact on health, and therefore should not be a cause for 
concern. The Health Protection Agency study of September 2009 “The Impact on 
Health of Emissions to Air from Municipal Waste Incinerators” reviewed research into 
links between emissions from municipal waste incinerators and effects on health. It 
concluded that “any possible health effects are likely to be very small, if detectable”.  
 

Disadvantages/arguments against 
 

· Historically, EfW has been more expensive than landfill (especially to meet emission 
standards), although increases in landfill tax are tilting the balance back in favour of 
EfW 

· Health studies cannot totally rule out a risk to health, however marginal this may be, 
with concerns in particular about dioxins 

· Public perception of EfW is generally negative (based at least in part on the poor 
reputation of previous generation incinerators that were not designed for EfW) 

· The larger the plant the greater the number of vehicle movements bringing waste to 
the facility which could cause local neighbourhood nuisance (although, conversely, if 
located near a densely populated area the waste can be dealt with more or less ‘on 
site’, minimising transportation to distant landfill sites) 

Page 73



 
The WLGA welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English - Mae WLGA yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg 

Printed on recycled paper - Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur eildro 

 

· Existence of EfW capacity could deter recycling, especially if there are contractual 
tonnages that have to be supplied (however, the EfW cap and the statutory recycling 
targets effectively eliminate this risk in Wales) 

· Employment generation will not be substantial as this is a capital intensive operation 
(as are the other technologies listed above); however, there is a need for continuous 
monitoring and this will require highly skilled individuals to be available at all times 

· Finding a suitable location can be difficult – not only due to public opposition but also 
because of the need for it to be well linked by transport and, ideally, co-located with 
energy using facilities that can benefit from electricity/heat generated. 

 
Overall, in light of the above information and the work already undertaken to enable 
separate food and dry recycling collection in Wales, WLGA agrees that Energy from Waste 
(EfW) offers the best option for disposing of non-recyclable waste. There is a cap on EfW 
use of 30% by 2024/25 – which is the ‘flip side’ of the 70% recycling and composting 
target. Therefore, contrary to the suggestion in the petition, the existence of EfW plants will 
not act as a disincentive to recycling – ultimately, they will be dealing solely with non-
recyclable material (see below). Moreover, the need for EfW plant should reduce between 
2024/25 and 2050 because (i) products and packaging materials should increasingly be 
chosen and designed for disassembly and preparation for reuse / recycling and (ii) 
collection services and facilities to recycle all of the material should be in place. 
 
Recyclable waste post 2020 
 
The petitioners argue for it to be “illegal to burn recyclable waste” by 2020. The Welsh 
Government’s statutory targets already require local authorities to be recycling 64% of 
municipal waste collected by 2019/20 – and 70% by 2024/25. There are financial penalties 
for not meeting these challenging targets. That means that local authorities already have a 
major incentive to maximise the amount of recycling they undertake. Indeed, councils have 
taken important steps to facilitate an increase in recycling and good progress is being made 
towards the next statutory target of 52% by 2012/13. At the point at which recycling levels 
of 70% are achieved there will be little if anything left in the waste stream that is capable 
of being recycled. The only material going forward to energy from waste plant for ‘burning’ 
would be residual waste. Therefore, WLGA believes there is no need for further legislation 
on this matter.  
 
Interestingly the petitioners focus on councils’ role in recycling. In fact, municipal waste 
accounts for under 10% of all waste in Wales. There are challenges in terms of increasing 
recycling in other sectors too, including industry and commerce, construction and 
agriculture. 
 
I hope that the information supplied above is of use to your Committee in considering the 
petition. WLGA would be happy to provide oral evidence to the Committee if required. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 

 
 
Tim Peppin 
Director – Regeneration and Sustainable Development. 
 

Page 74



Page 1 of 2 
Partnership of Councils Supporting partner

Our ref: PG/ILD/WG/094 
Your ref:  

10th January 2012 

Dear Sarita, 

Thank you for your request for information relating to the ‘Petition’ on residual waste.  As only 
point 1 relates specifically to Project Gwyrdd, we have responded to this point and have left 
points 2 and 3 to the stakeholders that deal with these issues. 

The response gives a short introduction and counters the claim that the Project is ‘against WG 
Policy of localised facilities’.  It then goes on to explain why the Project is consistent with each 
‘Council being able to chose their own waste technology and waste management 
procurement.’ 

Introduction 

Prosiect Gwyrdd is a partnership of 5 local authorities to deliver a solution to residual waste.  
This work is being carried out in parallel with each of the partners’ priority to recycle and 
compost as much waste as possible, in line with the legally binding Welsh Government waste 
targets.  The procurement is supported by the Welsh Government, both in terms of the cost of 
the procurement and a 25% contribution of the gate fee of the facility over the contract term. 

Each of the partners are committed to adhering to the EU Waste Hierarchy and are investing in 
reduction and reuse schemes, recycling education, recycling and composting collections as 
well as the infrastructure or service contracts to process these materials. 

The Project is committed to delivering the residual waste infrastructure needed to meet the 
Welsh Government waste targets up until 2025.  The Welsh Government’s Towards Zero 
Waste sets out Wales’ intention to recycle all of the waste we produce and eliminate any non 
recyclable rubbish by 2050.  If this is achieved there will be no need for energy from waste in 
the future but in the meantime residual waste has to be dealt with in a sustainable way. 

Against WG policy of localised facilities. 

Prosiect Gwyrdd is a sub-regional approach to residual waste procurement and the Project has 
to strike a balance between the principles set out in the Waste Proximity Principle and 
achieving value for money benefits through partnership working.  Both proposed sites at the 
ISFT stage are within the partnership area, with Viridor’s site at Trident Park in Cardiff and 
Veolia’s site south of the existing Llanwern Steelworks in Newport. 

The site location chosen by the bidders would have been determined by a range of factors 
including the proximity to where the waste is being generated, the availability to connect to the 

PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-341 Waste and Incineration - Item 2

Page 75



Page 2 of 2 
Partnership of Councils Supporting partner

grid to sell electricity, potential heat users and the transportation links and cost to deliver the 
waste to the facility. 

The Project evaluates the bidders’ Transportation Plan using an integrated environmental 
model assessment which takes all of these factors into consideration. 

The Project is fully in line with Welsh Government Waste and Environmental Policy.  This has 
recently been confirmed to the Project in a letter from the WG’s Waste Programme Office.  A 
Local Partnerships Transactor has been appointed to the Project by the Welsh Government to 
oversee the procurement to ensure that it is line with the Welsh Government‘s requirements 
and the Welsh Government will carry out their own ‘health check’ before contract close. 

Council’s to chose their own waste technology and waste management procurement. 

All five Councils chose through a due democratic process, to become part of ‘Prosiect 
Gwyrdd’.  The Project had to produce an Outline Business Case and had to chose a reference 
technology to show that the Project was affordable.  Through an integrated environmental 
model Assessment, Energy from Waste was chosen as the reference technology at that point 
in time.  The Outline Business Case and the agreement to start the procurement was agreed 
by all five Full Councils in summer 2009.  The procurement has always been technology 
neutral – we did not specify a technology. 

Through this democratic process, each Council agreed the Prosiect Gwyrdd procurement 
route, agreed the Outline Business Case, agreed the evaluation criteria, and agreed to 
advertise the requirements of the Project to the global market through an advert in the Official 
Journal of the European Union. 

Each of the partner Councils did chose their own procurement route and this has been carried 
out through democratic process.  Through this process they have also selected the two 
technologies that remain in the procurement. 

Yours sincerely, 

Prosiect Gwyrdd 

www.prosiectgwyrdd.co.uk

Page 76



PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-341 Waste and Incineration - Item 3Agenda Item 7

Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



 

RESPONSE BY THE WELSH ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES ASSOCIATION TO THE PETITION ON 

PROSIECT GWYRDD RECEIVED BY THE PETITIONS COMMITTEE OF THE NATIONAL ASSEMBLY 

FOR WALES 

 

The Welsh Environmental Services Association (“WESA”) is the trade association representing 

Wales’s waste and secondary resource industry.  We are a leading partner in Wales’s 

transformation from a disposal to a zero waste society and our members have helped Wales’ 

municipal recycling rate increase to 45%.  WESA members recover both value and energy from 

the Wales’s waste whilst protecting the environment and human health. 

 

 

Q1.  What, in your view, is the best method of disposing of non-recyclable waste? 

  

A1. The principle must be to deal with non-recyclable waste in a way which safeguards human 

health and the environment, while where possible recovering some value from it for society and 

the economy. Historically the main way of dealing with non-recyclable waste was to dispose of it 

to landfill, and today’s modern landfill sites are well-engineered to protect the environment and 

to capture landfill gas to create energy. But the scope to continue with landfill is diminishing, 

due to EU targets and national policies (plus the main economic driver of increasing landfill tax) 

which aim to preventing waste and recycling or recover more of what’s left – in line with the so-

called “waste hierarchy”. That is why other methods of dealing with non-recyclable waste are 

coming to the fore, including a whole range of different technologies ranging from controlled 

combustion to anaerobic digestion and composting. The waste industry we represent is 

technology neutral and will use the proven technologies which best meet the needs of its 

clients, be they businesses or local authorities, and which are most suitable for the various 

waste streams that need to be dealt with, bearing in mind issues of cost, environmental 

protection, and public policy. 

  

Q2. What are the advantages and disadvantages (in terms of the environment, health, local 

economy etc) of incineration?  

  

A2.  Modern energy from waste plants are very different from old-style incinerators. First they 

are much cleaner and safer in terms of emissions, thanks to technological advances and 

stringent EU controls, so that they pose effectively no risk to human health and the 

environment*.  Secondly they are much more efficient at recovering energy, and in some cases 

heat too, from the wastes they burn, and can make a useful contribution to energy supplies. So 

the benefits of energy from waste as opposed to landfill are that it is better for the 

environment, provides useful energy, helps meet EU and national targets on waste and energy 

policy, and provides more jobs than landfill. On the downside, energy from waste should only be 

used for wastes which are not recyclable or compostable (where economically feasible and 

environmentally beneficial), ie what is sometimes known as “residual waste”. The larger energy 

from waste plants are substantial capital projects requiring major financing and project 

management skills, but they can offer valuable economies of scale. It is important that 

investment in residual waste treatments such as energy from waste does not run counter to 

continuing efforts to reduce waste in the first place, and to recycle or compost as much as 

possible of the waste that remains.  It is notable that those European countries which have the 

PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-341 Waste and Incineration - Item 3

Page 80



highest recycling rates also have a significant energy from waste sector for residual waste – and 

almost no landfill. 

  

Q3. Do you think it’s a good idea for local authorities to collaborate on waste policy, which 

could lead to resource savings, or is it more important for them to find the most appropriate 

solution for their locality? What are the reasons for your answer? 

  

A3. This is ultimately a choice for local communities and their elected representatives to make. 

Wales has the advantage of having unitary authorities, which means that responsibility for 

waste collection and waste disposal is in the same hands, which is not always the case 

elsewhere in the UK.  There can be advantages in local authorities collaborating, for example in 

offering similar or complementary collection systems for householders and businesses in 

neighbouring areas, and in achieving value for money in contracting with waste companies who 

can achieve economies of scale when providing facilities for the recycling and treatment of 

waste over wider areas. But equally, depending on the local circumstances and the waste 

stream in question, there can also be advantages to small scale local solutions such as anaerobic 

digestion plants or in-vessel composting for food waste or garden waste. So its very much 

“horses for courses”. 

 

*In response to the Prosiect Gwyrrd Scrutiny Committee’s consultation on the health effects of 

Energy from Waste plants, WESA commissioned a review of the research evidence in this field 

from global sustainability consultancy AEA Technology.  This report, entitled Review of research 

into health effects of EfW facilities has been submitted to the Scrutiny Committee. 

 

WESA 

January 2012 

 

Page 81



 

PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 
P-04-341 Waste and Incineration – Item 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Damage to Human Health and the 
Environment from Incineration of Waste 
 
 
 
 

Response to Prosiect Gwrydd Joint Scrutiny Panel: Call 
for Evidence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 2011 
 
 

Page 82



2 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Sefydliad Siartredig Iechyd yr Amgylchedd 
 
 
Fel corff proffesiynol, rydym yn gosod safonau ac yn achredu cyrsiau a chymwysterau ar 
gyfer addysg ein haelodau proffesiynol ac ymarferwyr iechyd yr amgylchedd eraill. 
 
Fel canolfan wybodaeth, rydym yn darparu gwybodaeth, tystiolaeth a chyngor ar bolisïau i 
lywodraethau lleol a chenedlaethol, ymarferwyr iechyd yr amgylchedd ac iechyd y cyhoedd, 
diwydiant a rhanddeiliaid eraill. Rydym yn cyhoeddi llyfrau a chylchgronau, yn cynnal 
digwyddiadau addysgol ac yn comisiynu ymchwil.  
 
Fel corff dyfarnu, rydym yn darparu cymwysterau, digwyddiadau a deunyddiau cefnogol i 
hyfforddwyr ac ymgeiswyr am bynciau sy’n berthnasol i iechyd, lles a diogelwch er mwyn 
datblygu arfer gorau a sgiliau yn y gweithle ar gyfer gwirfoddolwyr, gweithwyr, rheolwyr 
busnesau a pherchnogion busnesau. 
 
Fel mudiad ymgyrchu, rydym yn gweithio i wthio iechyd yr amgylchedd yn uwch ar yr 
agenda cyhoeddus a hyrwyddo gwelliannau mewn polisi iechyd yr amgylchedd ac iechyd y 
cyhoedd.  
 
Rydym yn elusen gofrestredig gyda dros 10,500 o aelodau ledled Cymru, Lloegr a 
Gogledd Iwerddon. 
 
 

The Chartered Institute of Environmental Health 
 
 
As a professional body, we set standards and accredit courses and qualifications for the 
education of our professional members and other environmental health practitioners. 
 
As a knowledge centre, we provide information, evidence and policy advice to local and 
national government, environmental and public health practitioners, industry and other 
stakeholders. We publish books and magazines, run educational events and commission 
research.  
 
As an awarding body, we provide qualifications, events, and trainer and candidate support 
materials on topics relevant to health, wellbeing and safety to develop workplace skills and 
best practice in volunteers, employees, business managers and business owners. 
 
As a campaigning organisation, we work to push environmental health further up the 
public agenda and to promote improvements in environmental and public health policy.  
 
We are a registered charity with over 10,500 members across England, Wales and 
Northern Ireland. 

Page 83



3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Julie Barratt 
Cyfarwyddwr yng Nghymru 
Sefydliad Siartredig Iechyd yr Amgylchedd 
 
Ffôn symudol 07919 212664 
E-bost j.barratt@cieh.org 
 
Cwrt Glanllyn 
Parc Llantarnam 
Cwmbran  NP44 3GA 
Ffôn 01633 865533 Ffacs 01633 485193 
www.cieh-cymruwales.org 

 
 
 
 
Julie Barratt  
Director of CIEH Wales 
Chartered Institute of Environmental Health  
 
Mobile 07919 212664 
Email j.barratt@cieh.org 
 
Lakeside Court  
Llantarnam Park   
Cwmbran  NP44 3GA 
Telephone 01633 865533 Fax 01633 485 193 
www.cieh-cymruwales.org 
 
 
  

Page 84



4 

 

 
 

 

 
The Chartered Institute of Environmental Health (CIEH) is pleased to be able to 

assist the Joint Scrutiny Committee in its consideration of the potential impact of 

waste incineration plant emissions on human health and the environment.  

 
 

Our response will answer the two specific questions constituting the Terms of 

Reference of the Committee, thereafter we will make more general points which we 
hope will assist the committee in its consideration of this issue. 

 

c.    Is there any validated scientific evidence that an energy from waste incineration   
plant operating within the UK’s current statutory framework causes harm to 

Health and Environmental damage? 

 

In our view there is no credible scientific evidence that a well run waste incineration 
plant poses any significant risk to either human health or to the environment. The 

CIEH endorses the view expressed in the Health Protection Agency paper ‘The 

Impact to Health of Emissions to Air from Municipal Waste Incinerators’ (2009)i 
which in its conclusion states that ‘Modern, well managed incinerators make only a 
small contribution to local concentrations of air pollutants. It is possible that such 

small additions could have an impact on health but such effects, if they exist, are 
likely to be very small and not detectable’.  
 

We consider that the regime of emission limits and monitoring required by the 
Environmental Permitting (EP) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 is sufficiently 
rigorous to protect both human health and the environment from harm from such 

emissions to atmosphere as are generated by modern well run incinerators. 
 
  

d.    If there are examples(s) of validated scientific evidence, what are the causes       
       of/effects on human health and the environment?  
 
None of which the CIEH is aware. There are large numbers of credible, peer 

reviewed studies looking at potential damage to health and to the environment from 
particles emitted from waste incinerators and from various specified chemicals, 
including known carcinogensii  

None of the studies however can point to a credible risk being posed by such 

emissions. 
 

 

General comments 
 
 

It is generally accepted that in the past old style waste incinerators did generate 

pollution problems through emission of particulates to air and through the emission 
of chemicals that had an adverse impact on human health and on the environment 

within the vicinity of the incinerator.  

 

 

Page 85



5 

 
 
 

The CIEH is however of the view that the combination of the control put in place by 

the Environmental Permitting (EP) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 and 

advances in emission control and screening technology in modern incineration 
facilities are such that no significant risk is posed with either to human health or to 

the environment through the operation of such facilities. 

 
 

 

We trust that the foregoing will assist the Joint Scrutiny Committee in its 
deliberations and would be happy to provide such other information or assistance as 

may be considered to be necessary. 

 

 
 

Page 86



6 

 
                                           
i Health Protection Agency 2009 ‘The Impact of Health on Emissions to Air from Municipal Waste 

Incinerators’ 
ii Ibid 

Page 87



PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-341 Waste and Incineration - Item 4 Agenda Item 8

Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Terry Evans 
17/1/2012 

Abigail Phillip
Clerk to Petitions Committee 
Welsh Assembly Petitions Committee 
Welsh Assembly 
Cardiff Bay
Cardiff 
CF99 1NA 

Re-Views to Petition Committee on Ministers response 
Waste and Incineration Petition, P-04-341

My initial view to the response of the Environment Minister is that 
again the Minister’s reply to this petition and the Incineration 
Petition earlier in the year, is not the Ministers response but the 
Minister’s official’s response from his waste management office,
we need a bold Minister to take on the change that is required to 
our waste management, if he cannot or will not see the enormous 
resources in waste as clearly can be seen in other countries then 
he should move over for a Minister with drive and ambition to do 
the job, to allow or promote Welsh Councils to lock themselves in 
to contracts on Incineration of 25+ years is an act of 
irresponsibility, and should challenged on such a decision. 

I would welcome the Minister to personally reply to the questions in 
my response to the Petitions committee without asking his officials, 
because these questions are plain and simple for the people to 
understand. 

The Minister states that local authorities are able to choose their 
own waste technologies and waste procurement, then why was 
Caerphilly Council who was 9 months in their procurement process 
of choosing a MBT technology had it stopped by the Welsh 
Assembly and financially pressurised in to Prosiect Gwyrdd, there 
are numerous MBT and Autoclave plants in operation around the 
country, there is an new MBT plant at Avonmouth with 9 year 
working contracts, the offer to our Welsh Government and its 
officials is to go and see this plant for themselves  

PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-341 Waste and Incineration - Item 4

Page 91



 
The incineration debate as continued and the health risks are 
there, information and evidence is gathering by the day, 
Governments have buried their heads in the sand and continue to 
use outdated advice from their health departments. 
 
It is time the Minister called for expert evidence, not rely on out 
dated information, the Minister needs to have the courage and 
vision to look at the waste management in Wales and to remember 
this, that once asbestos, smoking and lead in petrol was deemed 
safe once by our health departments, the warning signs are there, 
why would an informed person take a risk on human health issues 
when clearly there are alternative safer, cheaper options available, 
it gives rise to the question was is really going on here? 
 
The Minister states that the Welsh Government has acted to stop 
potentially recyclable material from going to incineration by setting 
statutory targets to recycle 70% by 2025, a Welsh Government 
survey states that 93% of waste is recyclable, if it became illegal to 
burn certain recyclable waste the 93% target would be achievable 
sooner, Scotland as already made it illegal to incinerate certain 
waste 
 
I would urge the petition committee to hold an oral inquiry and to 
call expert witnesses.  
 
 
Terry Evans 
Chair United Valleys Action Group (UVAG) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 92



Agenda Item 9.1

Page 93



 

 

 Bae Caerdydd 
Cardiff Bay 
CF99 1NA 

 
Ffôn / Tel: 029 2089 8403     

E-bost / Email: HSCCommittee@wales.gov.uk 
 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg/We welcome correspondence in both English and Welsh 

 

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 
Health and Social Care Committee 
 

Dear William, 

 

Health and Social Care Committee – Inadequate public toilet facilities 

 

You will be aware that the Petitions Committee referred a petition to the 

Health and Social Care Committee in June 2011 relating to public toilet 

provision in Wales. The petition called upon the National Assembly for Wales 

to investigate the health and social well-being implications resulting from 

public toilets closures and to urge the Welsh Government to issue guidance to 

local authorities to ensure adequate public toilet provision.   

 

As you are aware, we held a one-day inquiry to consider the public health 

implications of inadequate facilities on 19 January 2012.  A report of the 

evidence we received is attached to this letter for your information. 

 
Based on the evidence received, the Committee is firmly of the view that the 

public health case for better public toilet provision is strong. Furthermore, the 

Committee believes that the evidence collected suggests that there is a prima 

facie case for further investigation of local authority provision of public toilet 

facilities. A series of practical suggestions were made by witnesses, through 

which local provision could be better planned and provided, with improved 

outcomes for public health. It is our view that these potential solutions could 

merit further investigation by those more expert in local government matters. 

 

The Committee has drawn this work to the attention of the Communities, 

Equality and Local Government Committee in the hope that, when next 

considering its forward work programme, it may be able to consider this 

matter for further investigation. The work has also been drawn to the 

attention of the Minister for Health and Social Services and the Minister for 

Local Government and Communities. 

 

 

William Powell AC AM 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau 

Chair, Petitions Committee 

 

 
5 March 2012 

 

Agenda Item 9.2

Page 94



  

Yours sincerely 

 
Mark Drakeford AC AM 

Cadeirydd - Chair  

 

Page 95



Correspondence from the Petitioner 13 March 2012. 

Representatives from the Parents Campaign for CASS have re-opened discussions with the Local 

Education Authority to further the best practice model of CASS. We will obviously re-open the 

Campaign for CASS should services from the CASS team be compromised in anyway or if CASS home 

support services are not enhanced in the future. 

 

Once again I would like to apologise for the short notice in letting the committee know of our 

decision but as a Campaign we have decided on this course of action on the behalf of our children. 

 

We would also like to thank the Committee and its Chair for providing the Campaign with the 

opportunity of attending the committee. 

 

Many thanks, 

 

Nichola Coleman 

PETS(4)-06-12 : Tuesday 27 March 2012 

P-04-358  Reinstate Home Support for Children with ASD and their Families in the Caerphilly County BoroughAgenda Item 9.3

Page 96


	Agenda
	2 Discussion of Evidence Received on P-04-335 The Establishment of a Welsh Cricket Team
	3.1 P-04-371 Reduced fares on public transport for all children up to the age of eighteen
	3.2 P-04-382 Student fares on public transport
	3.3 P-04-378 Extend the Gower Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
	Letter of support from Cllr Ioan Richard
	Letter of support from Mawr Community Council
	Letter of support from Save Our Common Mountain Environment
	Correspondence between The Gower Society and the Countryside Council for Wales

	3.4 P-04-379 Armenian Genocide Remembrance Day
	3.5 P-04-380 Bring back our bus! Petition against the removal of scheduled bus services from east Lampeter, Cwmann & Pencarreg
	3.6 P-04-381 Restoration for North Wales Hospital
	3.7 P-04-383 Against NVZ Designation for Llangorse Lake
	12.03.15  Let fr Roger Williams MP - NVZ Designation
	Correspondence re NVZ designation for Llangorse Lake

	4.1 P-04-354 Public statement of support for Bradley Manning
	Correspondence from the Cross-party Group on Faith

	4.2 P-04-322 A call to revise Cadw™s hold upon churches in Wales
	Correspondence from the petitioner

	4.3 P-04-356 A Call to Review the Issues Set Out in the 2007 Report on Football in Wales
	2012.02.16 CELG to Chair

	4.4 P-03-124 Cysgliad
	Welsh Language Strategy-e (p1)

	4.5 P-04-348 Recycling Targets for Health Boards
	Correspondence from the petitioner - (p1)
	Correspondence from Aneurin Bevan Health Board - (p2)
	Correspondence from the Minister for Health and Social Services - (p3)

	4.6 P-04-359 Problems With The NHS For The Deaf
	2012.02.02 Lesley Griffiths to Chair re response - (p1)
	Consultation Response - (p2)

	4.7 P-04-366 Closure of Aberystwyth Day Centre
	2012.03.13 Dep Min to Chair

	4.8 P-04-353 Anti-hate crime campaign in Wales
	Correspondence from the Minister for Finance and Leader of the House
	2012.02.16 CELG to Chair

	5 P-04-341 Waste and Incineration - Oral Evidence Session
	PET(4)-06-12 SNIC Paper - (Item 1)

	6 P-04-341 Waste and Incineration - Oral Evidence Session
	2012.01.10 Prosiect Gwyrdd response - (Item 2)

	7 P-04-341 Waste and Incineration - Oral Evidence Session
	2012.01.03 WESA Response to Call for Evidence 2 (Item 3)
	PET(4)-06-12 CIEH Paper 2 (Item 3)

	8 P-04-341 Waste and Incineration - Oral Evidence Session
	2012.01.17 Petitioner to Chair re views (Item 4)

	9.1 P-03-136 Parking in Heath and Birchgrove
	9.2 P-03-292 Public Toilet Provision
	9.3 P-04-358 Re-instate Home Support for children with ASD and their families in the Caerphilly County Borough

